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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To the Members of Forte Furniture Products India Pvt Ltd
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Forte Furniture Products India Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information(herein after referred to as Standalone Financial Statements)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its
loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No.33.5 to the financial statements, which describes the impact due
to the COVID-19 pandemic situation on the Company's financial results as assessed by the
management and the uncertainties associated with it considering the nature and duration of the
pandemic.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c)The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive
income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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(e)On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

(g) Provisions of Section 197 to the Act is not applicable to the company, being a private
limited company;

(h)With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

() The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv)

1. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

2. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:
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3. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence,
the related reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants
FRNO004532S

P R4Prasanna Varma
Place: Chennai Partner
Date : 18-05-2022 M No.25854
UDIN : 22025854AJRDEB2545

S

2




/{/__

( e 7 “Sreela Terrace’
o/ (4’7 areeli
7%%63 §/ Wm Level-4, Unit-D, 105, First Main Road

%{:MPW{?/ CUccountants

Gandhi Nagar, Adyar

Chennai - 600 020

Ph: +91 44 2445 2239, 2442 3496
E-mail : chennai@uarmaandvarma.com

ANNEXURE‘A’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH UNDER THE HEADING REPORT ON
“OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FORTE
FURNITURE PRODUCTS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022

(i)

a)

b)

c)

e)

i) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment, and Investment Property and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant and
Equipment and Right to Use assets have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no immovable properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) held in the name of the company, and hence the related
reporting requirements under the Order are not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us,

a) We are informed that the physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the
management at reasonable intervals and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by the management is appropriate. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the records of the
company, discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were not noticed on such verification.

b) The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with banks or financial
institutions in respect of working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, on the basis of security of current assets, are in agreement with the books
of account of the Company.

During the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Hence the relative reporting requirement under Clause3(iii) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
company examined by us, the company has not made any investments, granted any loans
or given any security or guarantee for which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act are applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, during the year the Company has not accepted any deposits or any
amounts deemed to be deposits which attracts the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India or within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Hence, reporting under clause 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Act for the company.
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a. Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable to
the Company, have been deposited regularly by the company with the appropriate
authorities during the year and except in case of Professional Tax. The amounts in
arrear in respect of Professional tax 31st March,2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable is Rs.2,53,902.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records
of the Company examined by us, there are no dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that
have not been deposited on account of any dispute as at 31st March, 2022.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

a. As per the information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans and in the payment of interest thereon to banks & financial
Institution. In respect of loans availed from other lender, as explained to us, the terms
of payment of interest have not been stipulated.

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

¢. The company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year
for the purposes for which they were obtained.

d. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
during the year, no funds raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, been used,
for long-term purposes by the Company.

e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and
hence, reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

f. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and
hence, reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.
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(x) As perthe information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our examination
of the records of the Company,

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) As per the information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our
examination of the records of the Company,

a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

c. The Company has not received whistle-blower complaints during the year and
hence, reporting on clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under
clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been duly
disclosed in Note 28 to the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standard.

(xiv)

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of
the Companies Act 2013.

b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based the records of the
Company examined by us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with the directors. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us,

a. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

c. The company is a not Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the
provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has
more than one CIC as part of the Group. The Group has 2 CICs as part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs.1896.89 lacs &
Rs.1630.42 lacs respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions including the
funding support of the shareholders as stated in Note No.35.1,0of financial statements,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.
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(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and based the records of the
Company examined by us, the company is not required to incur any expenditure towards
Corporate Social Responsibility activities, and hence reporting under clause 3(xx) of the

Order is not applicable.

Place: Chennai
Date : 18-05-2022

For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants
FRNO04532S

P R Prasanna Varma

Partner

M No.25854

UDIN : 22025854AJRDEB2545
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ANEXURE ‘B’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FORTE
FURNITURE PRODUCTS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH
2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Forte Furniture
Products India Private Limited("the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemnal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Chennai — 600 020
Ph: +91 44 2445 2239, 2442 3496
E-mail : chennai@uarmaandovarima.com

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants
FRN004532S

P R Prasanna VVarma
Place: Chennai Partner
Date : 18-05-2022 M No.25854
UDIN : 22025854AJRDEB2545
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Forte Fumiture Products India Privare Limitad
Statement of Profit and Loss for the peried ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended 3lst Year ended 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021
1 INCOME
Revernue from Operaons I8 518275 422438
Ohther ineome I 62601 26.24
Total Income (1) 5,245.36 4,250.62
I1 EXPENSES
Cost of raw matenials consumed 20 2357.51 1,970.12
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 592.65 629.39
Change i inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in- 21 e
T 347.54 (370.16)
Emplovee benehits expense 22 1.537.98 1.260.19
Finance costs 23 617.64 B17.08
Dlepreciation and amortizaton expense 24 411.68 30016
Other expenses 25 168593 157382
Total expenses (11) 7,553.93 6,271.20
I Logs before exceptinnal iems and s (1-11) (2,308.57) (2,020.58)
IV Excepronal Irems - -
V Loss before tax (IT1-1V) (2,308.57) (2,020.58)
VI T'ax expense: 36
(1) Current Tax -
(2) Deferred Tax . =
VII Profit/(loss) for the period (V-V1) (2,308.57) (2,020.58)
VIII Other Comprehensive Income 6,08 15.79
A Ttems that will be reclassified o profit or loss -
B lrems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
Re-measurement gans (losses) on defined benetie plans 34 6,08 15.79
Iveome tax elfect = -
IX Total Comprehensive Tneome for the pedod (VI + VT (2,302.49) (2,004.7%)
X Farnings per equity share; Face Value Rs. 1Y per Share
(1) Basic 37 (3.78) (4.56)
(2) Diluted X7 (3.78) (4.56)

Summary of significant accountng polices

The accompanying notes are an inegral part oF the financtal statements.

As per vur repon of even date,
For Varma & Varma

Chartered Accountants
L

o ber (1045328

i Regstranor

Alok Banzrjee

Partner

[irector

Membership No: 25854 DN NATI033

Place = Chennat

1 aie s 04 1022_

Place : Gurgaon
Date : 180520122

/

AMANDAKUMAR
Chiet Fmancial (ficer

Plaze : Chentw

Prat: : 18052022

b

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors of
Forte Furtiture Produets India Private Limited

WY & (71
12 08413040
Place : Chenna
Date : 18052022

Gaurav Duta
Company decretary
M.No. A24445
Place : Grurgaon

Dare : 18.05.2022



Forte Furniture Products India Frivate Limied
Statement of Changes 1n Equity for ihe year ended 31 Masch 2022
(Amount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless othervise stated)

| Orther Equity
+ : Hurplus in the errlneuummem
Farticulars Share Copinit Shase Premium | staterrent of profic Gat/{loss) on Aol
and loss de:.:;z::?:: bt

As on Dlst April 2020 3600100 1T.2R3.04) (20.35) (3.702.44)
Lasss fuse the year 2T 0 (2,020.57)
Onher comprehenssve mcome 15.78 1578
Shares wsued dunng the year 2307 250716
Premuum on issues of shares 1,735 173541
As at 3st March 2021 6,108, 16 1,755.01 (%,303.60) (1.57) { L445.06)
As on Olst April 2021 6,108.16 1 TR0 (9,303.066) (+57) (144506}
Lams tor the vear {2 3K3T) (2,308.57)
Other comprehensive meome s 61K
Shares wened durnyg the year
Prenum on ssues of shares a
As at st March 2022 0,108, 16 1,755.01 (1L612.23) 1.51 (3,747.35)

Ihe accompanying notes are an niegeal part of the Boancal stawements,

As per our repont of even date

For Varma & Varma

For and on hehalf of the board of directors of
Forte Furniture Prodocts India Private Limited

Charteral Accounmns

TCAT Firm Regnsersten number: (043325

Alok Bancrjes
Unrector

120N 0371033
Place . Gungaon

Date : 1R05.2022

V A
ANANDAKUMAR

Chnef Fmnaacal Otfuer

Andriej Secygiel
W & CLO

DN D841 3640
Phice : Chenin

1805307

e [8-05.289 2 Date

Company Secretary
M. Mo A24845

Phce 4 beniai Yace : Gurggoen

Dlare 1 18052022 Dare : 18052022




Forte Furniture Products {ndia Privee Limied
Statement of Cash Flows for the period endod 31 March 2022
{Amaount in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, auless otherwise staied)

[ articulars 3lst Mar 2027 3lst Mar 2021
A Operatng Activities
Lass before rax (2,302.49) (2,004,79)
Adjustmenis to reconcile logs before tax 1o uet cash faws:
Dieprecanon [ Amortsaonons o Langble & litasgpble Ssers 41108 30016
Fanance weme 515 (1419
Prowsoms wntten back 1501 926
Fmanee costs 70 1708
Operating (loss) before workang capital changes {1,263.21) (BOLET)
Working capital adjustmenes:
Increase m Toventories 17178 (IR0
Increase m I'mde recevables {2753 Q402
Decrease w Prancl assers | oans (20.07)
Deerease m Chther assers O8.10
Increase 1 Tode pavables 30348
Inerease w Other frunzed / Curverst fuab 194.76G
Inercane m Provesons {61.31)
Caehy (used) 19 operations (373.18)
Income s paud 11.17
Ner cash flows (used) in oporssing seovies (15554} (362.01)
B investing Activities
Purchase oF property, plant gl equipmeas (1B 1) {33.33)
Tvestnuent 1o \iL‘]’]nhrU- A1y 0ne7
Tntere st recened 515 14.10
Net cash from investing activities (218.16) (38.200
[ 84 Cash fow from Financing Activities
Repayment of shor term borowngs (230,406 (333.01)
Proceeds from shon wem o mgs Foem Banks 54120 924.7%
Proceeds tromm sswance of vmy shares 426217
borer Comporsie Depossar /O veeened 13119 T
Inter Comonte Deposit repaad (3.043.02)
Payment of lease oblygyoon (494.25; (494.25)
Tnterest paul [647.640 (R17.68)
Net Cash flows from / (used) in Financing Activities 423.10 588,95
D Net increase in cash and cosk equivalents (A + B + C) 1610 (11.28)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the periad L% 1 19.59
Cash and cash equivalenis at *he end ofthe period T 2441 #.31
Components of cash and cush equivalents as at pennu end
Cash i hand 724 134
Cheques ! deates w hand 48
Balances warh scieduied b
W CUEEe Aceomimnts 1717 4.2
i cash crech wocouns
2441 531
fis per our repoet ok even Jane Fou and ou sehalf of the Board of Directors of
Faor Varma & Varma Farte Furnirure Products Tndia Private Limited
Chariered Accounta
AT B Registra nnrabes 03525
.
Alok Banerjee
i na Varma Lmector WD & 1A
Ps DIN: 01371033 DIN: 08413646
Membershap Noe 23854 Place : Gurgim Thace - Chenmm
Mace - Chenna Dare @ 18053227
e '8 05—_ 2p22. "

No. 40, Il Main Road,
Ambattur Industrial

ANANDARUMAR

Chef Froanesd o

Place @ Chenna
Pare : 18405.2022
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Forte Fumiture Products India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are i lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

z1

22
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Caorporate Information

Forte Furmture Produet India Privace Lidis a joint venture between Zuan Gloabal Limated (an Adventz group company) |, Indian Furniture Product
Ltd.a subsidiary of Yuan Global Limited and FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" S.A.Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland, The Company s engaged n
manufactunng and trading ready w assemble fumitare (RTAL). The Company markets the product under the brand name of Style Spa and Zuan.

The Regstered office of the Company s located at G106, STDCO Tndustral Fstate, Kakkalue, Thiruvallue, Tamil Nadu 602003, Indsa.

Ihe fmancual statements wene authomsed for ssue i accondance wath a resoluton of the mcclinp‘nf Board of durectors held on 18th May 2021

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

2,11 The fimaneal statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nouficd onder the

Companmes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, The Company has
prepared these imancial statements o comply inall matenal respects wath the accounung standards nonfied under Secnon 133 of rthe Companies
Act 2003 (“the Aer™),

T'he preparanon of the Company's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumpuons that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and habihnes, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contngent habilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a matenial adjustment to the carmying amount of assets or habihties affected in future

penads.

The finanaial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, except certan other financal assets and labidines which  have been
measured at fair value (refer accountng policy regarding Anancial instruments).

The financial statements are preseated in Lakhs of Indian Rupee (Rs) except where otherwase indieated.
Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assees and labilities in balance sheer based on current/non-current classification. An asset s current when it is:

1) Fxpected to be realised orintended w be sold or consumed in nommal operating evle

() Held prmanly for the purpose of trading

(m) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting penod, or

{iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restrcted from being exchanged or used o sette a lability for at least twelve months afier the repornng penod.

s are classified as non-current.

All other ass
A liabualaey is current when;

(1) It s expected w be serled in normal operanng evele

() Tris held prmanly for the purpase of trading

(m] Tt s due o be settled wathan twelve months after the reporong penod, or

(v} There 15 no unconditional aght to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the seporting periad.

The Company classifies all other kabilites a5 non-current.

Deferred tax assers and habidines are classified as non-current assets and liabilines.

The operating evele s the nme berween the acqusition of assets for processing and their realisanon an cash and cash equivalents. The Company has

wdenufied mwelve months as its operating cvele.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair vatue s the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or pad to transfer 2 habihity in an orderly transacton between market parncipants at the
measurement date. The fur value measurement is based on the presumption that the mansacuon to sell the assee or transfer the liability takes place
vither:

(1) In the prnapal market for the asser or labiliry, or

(1) Tn the absence of a pancipal market, i the most advantageous market for the asset or lhabiliey

The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Company.

The farr value of an asset or a habihty 15 measured usmg the assumpoons that market participants would use when prcing the asset or liabiliry,
assuming that market paricipanis act in their ecennomice best interesr.

A e value measurement of a non-finanoal asser emkes into account a marker participant’s abality to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling i 10 another marker partcipant thar would use the asset in its highese and best use.

The Company uses valuanon techmgues that are appropriate in the dreumstances and for which sufficent data are available to measure fair value,
maxinusing the use of relevant obseevable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable mputs

Al assets and habihies for which Far value s measured or diselosed in the finaneial statements are categonsed within the fur value huerarchy,
desenibed as follows, based on the lowest level mpur that ss sigmificant w the faire value measurement as a whole:

§ Unipunch Pride
o Building,
= Near ICICI Bank Limited,
No. 40, i Main Road,
Ambattur Industrial




Forte Fumniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

(1) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices 1n active markers for idennieal assets or labilines
(m) Level 2 — Valuanon techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the far value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

) Level 3 — Valuanon rechmgues for whach the lTowest level tnput that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
q P g

For assers and liabihoes thar are recogmsed m the financnal statements on a recurnng basis, the Company  determines whether transfers have
occurred between Levels i the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level npur that s sigmificant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each repoming penod.

Fxrernal valuers are mvolved tor valuanon of sinificant assets, such as properties and um.pm[r:q,l finangial asseis, and Sig!‘liﬁcant liabilitics, such as
conttgent consideranon, if any.

A each repornng date, the management analyses the movements 1n the values of assets and liabdines which are required to be re-measured or re-
assessed as per the Company’s accounting polcies. For this analysis, the management venfies the major inputs applied i the latest valuation by
agreemy the mformanon in the valuaton compuration o contracts and other relevant documents.

The management, m conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the far value of cach asset and liability with
relevant exrernal sources o determine whether the change 15 reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disdosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and habilities on the basis of the nature, charactenstcs and

ks of the asscr or habihity and the level of the far value hicrarchy as explained above,

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-fnaneial assets that are measured at fair value or where fair values are disclosed in
the relevant notes.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Fquipment are suted ar cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any. Cost includes purchase price,
(inclusrve of import dunies and non — refundable purchase taxes, after deductng trade discounts and rebates) and other costs directly attributable o
bringing the asset o the locaton and condinon necessary for 1t to be capable of operanng i the manner intended by management. The eost of
Asgsets not ready for use as ar the Balanee Sheer date are disclosed under Capital Work-In-Progress.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of properry, plant and cquipment shall be cecognised as an asset if, and only if:

(a) it 1s probable that tuture cconomic benefits assoaated with the ttem will flow o the enoty; and

(b) the cost of the item ean be measured reliably.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at mtervals, Company depreaates them separately based on their specific
useful hives. Likewise, when a major nspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrving amount of the plant and cquipment as a
replacement if the recognition entenia are sansfied. Al other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Gams or losses ansing from de—recognition of PPI are measured as the difference beeween the net disposable proceeds and the earrymg amount of
the asset and are recognized 10 the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset 15 derecognized.

Spare parts arc capitgheed when they meet the definidon of PPE, i, when the Company miends w use these dunng more than a penod of 12
months,

Depreciation on Property |, Plant and Equipment s generally computed on a pro-rata basis on the basis of the estimated hife specified in Schedule T1
of the Companics Act, 2013 under Straight hne method. The useful life of assets preserbed in Schedule 1T o the Companies Act, 2013 are
considered for the purpose of Computanon of Depreeianon. However, if the management’s estmate of the useful life of 1 fixed asser ar the nme of
acqusition of the asset or of the remasning wseful life on an annual review s different from that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation 1s
provided at a such rate based on the useful lite / remaning useful ife as technically advised. Depreciation is provided based on the useful life
indicated below.

Nature of tangible asset Useful life(years)
TMant & I",q'u.ipmtm 10-15
Furmiure and fixiures 1
Ofhee equpment 3
Computers -6
Leaschold Tmprovements 3

The residual values, useful hives and methods of deprecanon of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted
prospecnvely, F appropnate.

Building,
Near ICICI Bank Limited,
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Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are i lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

d.

Intangible assets

Intangble assets in the nature of compurer software are amorosed over three years on a strught-hne basis based on management’s esumates.
Intangble a

with finte hves are amorused over the useful econome life and assessed for imparrment whenever there is an indicanon that the
mntangible asser may be imparred. The amortisinon period and the amortisason merhod e an immangible asser wich a fimite useful life are reviewed ar
least ar the end of each reporing penod. Changes i the expected useful life or the expecred patiern of consumprion of future economic benefits
embodied 10 the asser are considered 1o modify the amomsanon penod or merthod. as approprare, and are rreated as changes i accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangble assets with finite lives 1s recogrised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrving value of another asser.

Ciauns or loss

< ansimg from de-recognivon of an intangible asset are measured as the difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrving
amaount of the asser and are recogmised i the statement of profit or loss when the asser is derecogmsed.

Leases
Where the Company is the lessee

The Company assesses whether a contragt contains s se1f the contract conveys the
right to conteol the use of anadentified assct for a peniod of nme in exchange for consideration. 1o assess whethier a conract conveys the nght 10
control the use of an wdennfied asser, the Company assesses whether: (1) the eontact involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has
substantially all of the economie bencfits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Comypany has the nghi o direct the use of
the asset.

The Company recopnizes a nghr-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, exeept for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-erm Teases) and leases for low value undeelymg assers, For these short-rerm and leases for low value
underdying assers, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a steight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain
lease arrangements include the opnons w extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease wrm, Rightof use assets and lease habilites
include these optons when 1 s reasonably ecrtan that the opton to extend the lease will be exercised/opuon o terminate the lease will not be
exerersed.

The nght-of-use assets are wmtially recognized at cost, whach comprses the initial amount of the lease liabhiy adjusied for any lease payments made
atur prior w the commencement date of the lease plus any wninal direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured ar cost less
accumulated depreciation /amortization and impairment losses. Right-of-uge assets are depreciated /amortized from the commencement date to the
end of the useful hife of the underymg assed, 1 the lease transfers ownership of the underying asset by the end of lease term o if the cost of nghtof-
use assets reflects that the purchase opnon will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated /amortized from the commencement
date on astraght-hine basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful hfe of the underying asscr

Right-of-use assers are evaluated for recoverabality whenever events or changes in circumstances indicare thar thetr carmmg amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (Le. the higher of the far value less cost o sell and the value-in-use) 1s
determined on an indinadual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash Aows that are lageely independent of those from other assers. In such
cases, the recoverable

The lease hability 1s imally measured at amortieed cose ar the present value of the future lease pavments, The lease payments are discounted using
the mterest rate impliat in the lease or, of not readily detenminable, using the mneremental borrowing rate. Tease labiliies are re-measured with a
carresponding adjustment o the related nghe-of~use asset if the Company changes its assessment whether 1t wall exercise an extension or a
termination epton, In the comparanve penod, as lessee the leases were accounted as per Ind AS 17 and classified as finance lease and operating
lease, and accounted as Follows:

Einance Lease

In the comparative penod, leases of property, plant and equspment where the Company, as lessee has substanoally all risks and rewards of ownership
were classified as Gnance lease. On il recogniion, assets held under fimance leases were recorded as property, plant and eqwpment and the
related hability was recognized under borrowings. At inception of the lease, finance leases were recorded at amaunts equal to the far value of the
leased asset oraf ower the present value of the mimimum lease payments. Mirtmum lease paymients amounts under finance leases were apporboned
between the finance cost and the reduenion of the outstanding liabiliry. The finance cost was allocated ta cach period during the lease teem so as 1o
produce a constant penodic e of mierest on the remaning balance of the liabiliey

Operating leases

In the comparanve penod, leases m which a sigrificant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not tansferred o the Company as lessee
are classfied as operating lease Payments made under operatng leases were recosmized as an expense on a straght-line bagis over the lease term
unless the payments were stoactured to ncrease in hne wath expected general inflaton o compensate for the lessor's expected inflanonary cost

increases. Lease incentives received were recogrized as an integral part of the toral lease expense, over the term of the lease

Unipunch Pride
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Forte Furniture Products Tndia Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stared)

f.

Impairment

Assessment s done annually as w whether there s any indicanion that an asser (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of
assessing impaimment, the smallest identfable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continwng use that are largely independent of the
cash mflows from other assets or groups of assets, 1 considered as a cash generaung umt. 15 any such indicaton exists, an esomate of the
recoverable amount of the asset / cash generating unit s made. Assets whose carmping value exceeds thetr recoverable amount are written down to
the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating umit’s far value less cost to sell and its value in use. Value in
use 18 the present value of esnmated future cash flows expected 0 anise from the eontinung use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its
useful hife. Assessment 1s also done ar each Balanee Sheet date as to whether there s any indication that an imparment loss recognized for an asset
1n prior accouning periods may no longer cxist or may have decreased. In such cases, mparment losses are reversed to the extent the assets carrpng
amount does not exceed, the carming amount that would have been determined 1f no impaiment loss had previously been recogmzed

Inventories
The cost nf inventones shall compnse all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in banging the inventories to their present
locanon and condinon,

Inventones ane valued ar the lower of Cost and Net Reahsable Value,

The cost of vanous categones of imventones are deteomined as follows:
() Stores and spares, raw materials and packing materials: at moving weighted average basis.
(b) Waork-in-progress and finished good

‘st includes direet matenials and labour and a proportion of manufactunng overheads based on normal
operatng capacity. Costis determined on a moving weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Costineludes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in banging the inventories
to thewr present locason and condibon. Cost s determined on a weighted average basis.

Matenals and other sems held for use in the production of inventones are not written down below cost 1f the fimshed products in which they will
beneorporated are expeeted to be sold at or above cost.

Net realisable value is the csumated selling price i the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the cstimated costs
necessary o make the sale.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Capital Commitments.

General

Provisions are recogmsed when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 4 past event, 1t 1s probable that an outflow
ol resources embodyving ceonomic benefits will be required o setile the obligation and a rehable cstimate can be made of the amount of the
ohlganon.

When the Company expects some or all of 3 provision o be revmbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, bur only when the rambursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any rambursement,

Tt the effeer of the nme value of money 15 material, provisians are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropnate, the risks
specific to the labiliey. When discounting is used, the inerease in the provision due to the passage of tme s recogrused as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

The Company estimates the hability for the purposes of recognising and measuring provisions for warranty obligations, in relation 10 repair or
replace the items that ful w perform sausfacionly during the warnanty period, Warranty provisions are recognised when the nisks and rewards of
wnership of the goods are sold or a service 15 provided, In order to determine the level of the provision, various factors are taken nto
consideranon, mcluding estimations based on past expenence with the nature and amount of claims, teehnical evaluatons ete. These esamations also
mvolve assesseng the furure level of potenual repair ensis. Provisions for warsanties are adjusted regulary 1o take account of new eircumstances and
the impact of any changes recogrised in the income statement

T the effect of the ome value of money 18 matenal, provi

sions are discounted using a carrent pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropnate, the nsks
speatfic to the lability. When discounung 15 used, the merease in the provision duce w0 the passage of tme is recognised as a finance cost. No
reimbursements are expected.

Contingencies

A contingent hability 15 a possible obligation that anses from past events whose existence will be continued by the oceutrence or non-occurrence of
one ot more uncerin future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that 15 not recognized because it 15 not probable
that an outfow of resources will be required 1o sertle the obligation, A contingent habiliry also arises i extrermnely rare cases where there is a hability
thar cantiot be recognized because 1t cannot be measured rehably, The Company does aot recogmize a connngent hability but discloses s essstence
in the financial statements.

Unipunch Pride
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(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue, compnsing of sale of Furniture Products, 1s recognised when performance obligation i satsfied and it 1s hughly probable that a sipnificant
reversal will not eccur. Tumover 15 recogmised when control of the products being sold has transferred 6 costomer and when there are no longer
any unfulfilled obligations to the customer. This 1s generally on delivery to the customer but depending on individual customer terms, this can be at
the tme of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceprance, This is considered the appropnate pont where the performance abhgations are
sanstied and the company no longer have control over the iventory. The transfer of control of products to our customers 15 typieally based on
written sales terms that in certan cases allows for a nght of return,

An estmate s made for goods that will be returned based on such nghts and hability, if any, 15 recognised for this amount, An asser is also recorded
for the corresponding nventory that s estimated to return using a best estimate based on accumulated expenience.

Turnover comprses sales of goods after the deduction of discounts on sales. Discounts given includes rebates, price reductions and other incentives
given to customers. Accumulared expenence s used o esnmate the discounts, using the most likely amount method.

The products are sold for eash or on credit terms. The eredir terms, which are established in accordance with local and industry practices, trpically
require pavment within 0 to 60 days of delivery mn and may allow discounts for carly payment,

Other items of revenue
Interest income - Revenue 1s recognised on a ume proportion basis under the effective interest method taking nto aceount the amount outstanding
and the applicable interest rate. Interest income 15 included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss,

Taxes
Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the peaod is the tax payable on the carrent penod’s taxable ncome based on the applicable income ax rate for
each junsdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and Labilites attnbutable to temporany differences and 1o unused tay losses,

The current income tax charge 1s ealeulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantvely enacted ar the end of the reportng penod an the
countnes where the Company operate and generate raxable income. Management penodically evaluates posions taken 1n @y returns with respect to
suations i which appheable tax regulanon is subject to interpretation. It eseablishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be pad to the 1ax authonties.

Deferred tax

Deferred income s s provided m full, using the habihity method, on temporary differences ansing berween the tax bases of asscts and liabalities and
ther carrying amounts i the fimanenl starements, However, deferred ax labilities are not reeognised if they anse from the inital recogmuion of
goodwall,

Dleferred income tax 15 also not accounted for 1f it anses from inital recognition of an asset or hability in a transaction other than a business
combinaton thatat the nme of the ransacnon affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profir (tax loss).

Deferred income tax 15 determined usingr tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 15 realised or the deferred income tax liability is sertled.

Deferred tax assers are recogmsed for all deducnble temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it s prabable that future mxable amounts
will be avalable o utlise those iemporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and habibiies are offset when there s a legally enforceable nghe to offser current tax assers and liabilities and when the deferred

tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current fay assets and tax lmbilines are offser where the entity has a legally enforceable right o
offset and intends eccher to settle on a net basis, or o reahise the asset and settle the liabiity simultaneously.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Al employee benefits payable wholly within swelve months are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salarics, wages, shar-
term compensated absences, performance incentives et and the expected cost of bonus, ex-grana are recognised i the sutement of profit and loss
durng the penod i which the emplioyee renders related semvice.

Payments 1o defined contmbunon reasement benefit plans are recogmsed as an expense when emplovees have rendered the servnice enntling them o
the contrbunon.
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Provident fund

Revrement benefit in the form of Provident Tunds (where contributed to the Regonal PF Comnmussioner) 15 a defined contnbuton scheme, The
Company has no obligaton, other than the contnbution payable o the provident fund. The Company recogmizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expendituee, when an employee rendees the related service. If the contmbunon payable to the scheme for service
recetved before the balanee sheer date exceeds the contnbution already paid, the defict payable 10 the scheme s recogmized as a hability after
dedueting the contnbution already pad. 1f the contnbution already paid exceeds the conmbution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then exeess s recogmzed as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead 1 a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

Long-term emplovee benefits:

Gratuity

The hability or asser recogmsed m the balanee sheet i respect of defined benefit gratuty plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
ar the end of the reportng perod less the far value of plan assets. The defined benefir obliganon 15 caleulated annually by actuaries using the
projected umt eredit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligaoon denominated in INR 15 decermined by discounting the esumared future cash outflows by
reference 1o market vields at the end of the repurting perind on government bonds that have rerms approsimanng o the terms of the related
obliganon. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted using market vields determined by
reference to lgh-quality corporate bonds that are denorminated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating
1o the eoms of the related obligaton.

The net mierest cost 1s ealeulated by applying the discount rate to the net balanee of the defined benefie obligation and the far value of plan asscts.
This costis mcluded in employece benefit expensc in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gams and losses arsing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recogmsed in the period inwhich
they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income,

They are mcluded 10 retained earnings 1 the statement of changes in equity and i the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined
beneit oblignuon resulting from plan amendments or curtallments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Leave encashment

Aceumulated leave, which is expected to be unhized within the next 12 months, 1s treated as short erm employee benefit. The Company measures the
expected eost of such absences as the addivonal amount that it expeets to pay as a result of the unused cntidement that has accamulated at the
reporting date. Short term compensated absenees are provided for based on estmares.

Long term compensated absences are provided for based on estmates. Long term compensated abscoees are provided for based on actuarial
valuaton. The actuanal valuanon is done as per projected unit eredit merhod. Such long- term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuanial valuation using the projected umit eredit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains losses are immediately raken to the statement of profit and
loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the ennire leave as a current hability in the balance sheer, sinee it does not have an unconditional
right o defer us seulement for 12 months after reporting dare.

Foreign currency transactions

Ttems included i the Gnancial statements arc measured using the currency of the primary ceconomic environment in which the entity operates (“the
funcnonal currency™). The finangial statements are presented in Tndian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactons and balances

Forewn currency transactons are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Forvign exchange
guns and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the teanslation of monetary assets and liaby
currencies at year end exchange rares are recogmsed in profir ar loss,

s denomunated in foreign

Foreyn exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, wirhin finance costs. All
other foregn exchange gams and losses are presented 1w the staement of profit and loss on a nes hasis within other gains / (logses).

Transacuons in foreign cuerencies ave imally eccorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies
for recogmion

Monetary assets and labilines denominated in foreign curréncies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange ar the reporting date.
Iixchange differences ansing on setdement or translaton of monetary items are recognised in profit or luss,

Financial instruments

\ financial instrument 15 any contract that gives rise to a finanaal asset of one conty and 4 financal labibity or equity instrument of another entity.

Near ICICH Bank Limited,
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1

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets are recognised inanally ar fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are atmbutable o the aequisinon of the finanaal asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carned at fair value through profic or loss are
expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require defivery of assets within a ume frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way rades) are recogmsed on the rade date, ve., the date that the Company commuts 1o purchase or sell the

asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, finaneial assets arce classified in following caregories:
Dbt instruments at amortised cost
-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
-Debt instruments, denvatves and equity mstruments at "far value through profic or loss' (FVTIL)
-Fquity nstruments measured at fur value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ 15 measured ar the amartised costif both the following condinons are met:

a} The asset s held withan a business model whose objective 1 to hold assets for colleching contractual cash fows, and

by Contraceual terms of the asset give nse on speaficd dates to cash fows that are soldy payments of prncapal and interest on the principal amount
nutstanding.

After mitial measurement, such financal asscts are subsequently measured at amortsed cost using the effecuve interest rate (EIR) method.
Amornsed cost s caleulared by taking ineo account any discount or premium on acqusition and fees or eosts that are an integral part of the FIR. The
FIR amaortisaton s included in finance income i the profit or loss The losses arising from impaitment are recognised in the profit or loss. This
category generally applies w trade and other reeevables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt msirument’ s classified as ar the FVTOCEf both of the following enreria are met:
1) The objectve of the business model s achieved both by colleeting contractual cash flows and selling the fnancial assers, and
b) The asset’s contraciual eash flows represent SPP1

Debr nstruments included wirhin the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as ar each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are

sgmied m the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the company recognizes interest income, imparment losses & reversals and foregn
cxchange gan or loss i the P&L. On derccogmuon of the asset, comulanye gain or loss previowsly recagmsed in OCT s reclassified from the equity
to P& Tnterest carned whist holding FVTOCT debtinstrument is reported as interest income using the TR method.

Debt instrument at FYTPL

IVIPL s a residual category for debtanstruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meer the eriena for categorisation as at amornsed cost or as
FVTOCL s classified as at FVIPL, In addinon, the Company may elect 1o dusignate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FNTOICT entena, as at FVTPL. However, such election 15 allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 4 measurement or recognition inconsistency
{referred to as ‘accountng mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the I'NTPL category are measured at far value wath all changes recopnized
s the statement of proficand loss.

Equity instruments F

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, equety instruments are classified in oo carcgones:

=Fguty instrements ar fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Byuity instruments measured ar far value through other comprehensive icome (FVTOCT)

AL coury invesiments: are measured at faie value, The Company may make an irrevoeable election to present 1n other comprehensive income
subseyuent changes in the far value. The Company makes such clection on an instrument -by-instrument basis. The classification is made on inioal
recipmnon and s ireevoeable. Fgury instruments meluded within the FVTPL category are measured ar faw value wath all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

IF the Company deades to classify an equity instrument as al FVTOCIH, then all fase value changes on the instrument, excuding divadends, are
recopmized i the OCL There s no reeyeling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Caompany may transfer the cumulative gan or loss within equaty.

Unipuneh Pride
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, wher: applicable, a part of 3 financial asser or part of a Company of similar financial asscts) s primanly derecognised (e,
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- The nghts to recerve eash Aows From the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred s rights to recerve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash Oows in full
without marenal delay w a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement; and ather (a) the Company hag transferred substantially all the nsks and

rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its ghts to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and 1o
what extent it hag retamned the nsks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retamned substantally all of the risks and cewards
of the asset, nor mansferred contol of the asser, the Company continues w recogmse the transferred asser to the extent of the Company’s continuing
mvolvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the nights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Contmung involvernent that takes the form of a guarantee over the ransferred asset is measured at the lower of the ongimal carrying amount of the
asset and the mavsmum amount of consideranon that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward lookang basis the expeeted eredit lasses assocated with its assees carried at amortised cost and FVTOCT debe
mstruments. The imparment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a sipmificant inerease in eredit risk since initial recognition.

Far trade recevables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 “Finanaal Instruments’, which requires expected
lifetime losses o be recogmsed from imtial recogniton of the recervables.

Financial habilites
Imitial recognition and measurement

Finaneial kabhies are elassified, at il reeognition. as financial liabilities ar fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
dervatves. All financral labihoes are recognised imeally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attnbutable transacion costs. The Company’s financial habilines inelude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including denvauve financial
INSIrUmenis.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial habihnes depends on their classification, as deseribed below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financnal labilines at far value through profic or loss include financial liabilities held for rading and financial labilines designated upon inial
recogmtion as at faie valoe through profie or loss. Fimancial labilities are classified as held for trading af they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing n the near term.

Gins or losses on abilines held for rading are recognised i the profic or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After imiial recogninon, interest-beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gans and losses
are recogmised in profit or loss when the habilines are derecogmsed as well as through the EIR amortisanon process.

Amortised costis caleulated by taking into account any discount or preminm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inegral part of the EIR. The
EIR amorusation is included as finance costs in the saiement of profic and loss.

Ts caregory generally applics 1w borrowings

Derecognition

A financial liability is derccognised when the obligaton under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial habihity is
replaced by another from the same lender on substanually different terms, or the terms of an cxistung labiliy are substannially modified, such an
exchange or modification 15 treated as the derecogmpon of the onginal habihiy and the recogninon of a new hability. The difference in the respecove
carryrny amounts s recognised 1o the saatement of profic or loss.

Offsetiing of financial instruments
linancial assers and finanaal habihioes are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there 15 1 currently enforceable lepal nght o
offser the recogmsed amounts and theee s an mtenuon to settle on a net basis, to reabise the assets and setle the habilities simultaneously,
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalentin the balance sheer comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an onginal marurity of three months
o less.

Eamings per share

Basic carmings per share we caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the perod atiributable to equity sharchalders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding duning the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attnbuable to equity sharcholders and the waghred average number of shares outstan ding during the penod are adjusted for the effeets of all dilutve
potenual cquty shares.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs meludes interest and amortizaton nfﬂnciﬂ:u'y costs incurred 1n conneenon with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange
differences ansing from foreign currency borrowangs 1o the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Bormowing costs direetly attnbutable to the acquisition, construetion or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial penod of pme to get
ready for 12 mtended use or sale are c-.lpimli'.eud as part of the cost of the respccti\'e asser, All other borrowing costs are L':rpuﬂscd in the pcrind {lll,.'_\‘
ECCUr.

Segment Reporting policies

Operating segments are reported in oo manner consistent with the mternal reporang provided o the Chief Operaong Decision Maker, Chief
Operating Deaision Maker reviews the performance of the Company according 1o the namre of products manufactured, vaded and services
provuded, with cach segment representing a steatege business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
geographical segments 15 based on the locanons of customers,

The Company prepares s segment mformanon m conformity with the accounting policies adopted for prepanng and presenting financial statements
of the Company.

On March 23, 2022, MCA nonhed the Companies (Indian Aceountng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, with amendment to certain Ind AS that
are appheable 1 the Company effecove 1se Apal, 2022, as given Liclow.

I Tnd AS 16 = Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies thar excess of net sale proeceds of stems produced over the cost of
testingg, 1F any, shall not be recogmsed i the profic or loss bue deducred from the directy arriburable costs considered as part of cost of an iem of
property, plant, and equipment.

2 [nd AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilines and Contingent Asscts —
ax The amendment specifies thar the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract (while assessing whether a contract 1 pnerous) compnses the ‘coses that

relate directly o the contract’ which can aither be the cremental costs of fulfilling that contract or an allocanon of ather costs that relare directly
to fulfilling the conteact.

b. Furthee, the requiremnent of recogmising any impairment loss before a separate provision for an onerous contract s estabhished has also
been amended to cover all assers used in fulfilhing the contract and ot only the assets dedicated to thar conteact.
3 Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruinents - The amendment clanfies which fees an entity includes when it applics the U0 percent’ test of Ind AS

119 in assessing whether o derecogmse a financial liability.
The Company has evaluared the effeer of the above amendments on the financial statements and the impact is not expected to be marerial.

This space has been intentionally lefi blank
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3. Praperty, plant and equipment

=
Partic i"h‘m: & & & i . Oifice . Lease hold Total
Equipment = Equipment lmprovement

Grpes block (at Cost)

As ai Olst AFﬁ] 2020 33.45 44,43 3505 Tiel 186.16
Addinon 15.00 19 1736 1604 53.35
Dhposale & . = s ¥
As at March 32, 2021 5144 40,41 53.01 S8.04 239.51
As at 01zt April 2021 5144 45,41 53.01 88.64 239.20
Adchion 40.87 5.06 16,98 18,97 §7.87
Dispods " ” 4 i X
Admstoeaty & = = 3 d
As at March 31, 2022 95.31 51.47 09.99 107.61 327.59
, i De o

As at 81t Apail 2020 374 16,86 5, 3283 59,12
Chazge for the rear 475 b R | .50 5 3949
Deducnon - " =
As ar March 31, 2021 8,49 20.57 13.19 30.57 98,01
As at 01st )\pn’l 2021 5.49 26.57 1319 50.57 93%.01
Chasge for the reat .44 .06 1284 18.13 50.31
Decucton: ot
As ot March 31, 2022 17.93 Jo.46 26.03 68.50 148.92
Net book value

A ar Masch 33, 202! 4293 19.85 39.82 38.27 140.90
At ot Mareh 51, 2622 80.38 15.01 13.96 3011 178.47
Lapiral work n-progress

Parniculars Amount 3103} Amount 31.03.
o 2022 2021
oid 1 v

As st the beginmng of the year = &

Addiwon: £ i

Cabatadizaiione ‘

As at end of the year = =

Refer note 13 for the informutios on pli, j=r o ancl egupEL ?:'wcigtd s secuety by the Company,

4. Right of Use Assets

Plany &
Particulars Bulding | . Tatal

Gross Block

As at (st Apal 2020 230082 Teos 278091

Addiuens P

Themveahs ] & d
As at March 31, 2021 2,50L82 78.09 2,780.91

As at 01st Apal 201 2,3502:82 278.09 175091

Addimem ~ 100,13 100.13

Dhrposals

As a1 March 31, 2022 2,502,682 e B | — 2,881.04

. .

As at 01st April 2020 3235 3476 34061

Chasge for the vear 31285 3476 34761

Dedicaon: 5 = =

As ar March 31, 2601 425,70 49,52 [

As ar 01st Apeil 2021 £25.70 4952 69332

Clhurge for the tear X8 4347 33832

Dechmnons

As at March 31, 2022 38.55 114.99 1,083.54
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Net book value = i
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5. Inrangible Assets

P n
L Software Total
Gross block
As at (st Aprit 2020 75 1275
Acddstmeng 3
Darporals - s,
As at March 51, 2021 12.75 12.78
As ar O1st April 2071 12.78 IL7S
Addmons @18
Dozl
As ar March 31, 2022 1293 12.93
Alnortization
As ar 015t Apal 2020 2ol i
Addinon 06 306
l&r.;ﬂ! - -
As ar March 51, 2021 207 207
As at 0let Apail 2021 587 307
Addron 306 3
Dhzposak -
As at March 31, 2022 513 813
Met hook vahie
Adst March 7.68 768
Ar i Mageh 51 Lad 4.50 4.80
&. Financial assets

31 March 2022 31 Maech 2021
Particulars Non Current Curvent Non Current Curzent
Other Financial Avsets(Unsecured and considered good)
Secusity Diepous Aainened cossi 083 44210 b 4169
Taotal 4085 44.21 44.50 40.69

n the macigement’s cpouce, the sbowe degposts do not fall i the extegorr of loans sod recemiables wick have 8 sgmfisant secesse w Credit Ritk o1 Loaas and zecerrables whach ace ersdit

"
mmpasedd

7. Other assets
(Unsecured and considered good)

; 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Particulars
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

Balance wrth Statutorr Anthonites - 26879 - 18544
Advrances recorerable i Cazh or Kind - 13379 = 633
Plel_:rmd expenses 16.33 36.51 Tb2 3423
Total 16.53 379,09 7.82 226,22
2. Inventonies
(Lower of Cost and Net realisable value)
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 3ist Mar 2021
Inventory

= 121105 103382
Raw materal: and component: mehiding Packing matenals

IRT S SFTT
Wodk-an-progress 26238 132.
Finiched goods 111538 1.380.15
Traded good: X234 28313
= ik 6l 64 63.10
Stores and spares
Total PO 2,941.19 3,112.97
S

<




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Details of inventory

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Details of inventory - Raw Materials and components

including Packing matenals

Parncle boarde 27630 206209
Decosative papers 34746 24518
Packing matenals 8599 8034
Others 501.30 506.21
Total 1,211.05 1,033.52
Details of mventory of traded goods

Fusmmire and acceszones 202.34 285.13
Details of inventory of finished goods

Funutire and accessones 111338 138015

lie cost of mrentones recoguizad ax an expeuses during the vear is 23 per Note No 20 & 21

The management has remewsed the casrmng value of mrentosies by asessing the net teakizable valne which is detenmined br forecasting
rellig poce and esemated cost to make the 2ales, inchading for tems that aze long aged This revienw bt the management remited m ~vate
down of inventor to the extent of Rs. 40,93 Lacs which i adiusted a: wnte down of wventory to its net reakizable valne No facther

provmon 1 copudered necessary by the management.

9, Trade receivables

Parniculars 31st May 2022 3ist Mar 2621
Unsecured considered good
Trade tecerrables 1348356 1.063.62
Recerczbles from related parnes (Note 28) 1.52
Less . Expected credit Joss allowance - =
Total 1,349.56 1,065.14

Trade recervables which have stgmficant increase o crecht sk
Trade recervables which are creclis impared

Total

Receivable - Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021

Undisputed Dues 1,142.71 852.95
- Not Dues - -

- Less than 6 months 95451 37320
- & months -1 Tear 3340 30.56
- 1-Z vears 13430 1066.93
- 2-3 vears = 34225
- 2{ore than 3 vears - -
Disputed Dues 206.85 212.19
- Not Due: =

- Les: than € months - -

- s months -§ vear -

- 1-2 veas: . =

- 2.3 vears = 2

- Moze than 3 vears 206.85 2iz19

Asipuneh Fride

gulding,
2ank Linited,

5 { ear tOICH c-anfu.\na

: Rﬁﬂu.tﬁ,\mam&oa.d.

C N hatiulodes




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

For terms and concitions zelatmg to related partr recervables, refer Note 28

Trade secervables, othes than the chowroom sales, are non-interest beasing and ace generallr on terms of 30 to 60 davs. The showroom
sales aze genecallr on carh basis.
Since the managment of the compaar expects full reabsation of receivables based on past trendno allowances towasrds noa gecovery of

dues 1z considered necetzarr.

AMovement m expected ceedit loss allowance

Particulars 3st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Balasice at begiuning of the veac - -
Alovement m expected credit loss allowwance on trade recervables - -

Amount watten off duane the vear - -
Balance at end of the vear -

Provision for expected credit losses

The Lfe ume expected credit loss ("ECL™) 11 estimated on trade recervables, other amomut: dne from entities where thers is no teack
record of thort recespts, Delars m recerring parments from the enstomers pucsuant to sale of goods o under contracts are not
consdered :f such delars are commonlr prevalent m the mdnatry.

The company 1= ondy m 3th vear of full commercial operations. Alio, the operations were ugnificantly dissapted due to Covid 19
pandenue m the eurrent as well as m the premous year.

Conudenng the above facts, the determmnation of a prowuon hased only on age analysis mar not be a reakistic considering the economuc
crreumistances and resultant dieruptions i the operations of the company. Hence, the proviion for expected ceedit Ioze i detersnined by
the management for the specific trade recervables after conudering the above fact: and cirenmstances. and alto regarding to the fact that
there hias not been anv matenal amounts idennfied and watten off 2z bad debts in the recent past.

10a. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
2 Balances wath banks

- 0f cucrent acconuts 17.17 429
3. Cash on hand T4 354
¢. Cheques /draft on hand - 048
Total i 24.41 8.31

10b. Other bank balances

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Current
Balances with banks:
Depouts with remanung mataatr between 3 to 12 months 3541 039
Total 35.41 0.29
11, Shase Capital
3Est Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Authorized shares
§.2000000 (P 37000006 equty shares of Rs - £200 6200
sach - S
6200 5200
Issued. subscribed and folly paid.up
6,10,81.570 LPY €. 70,82 573 equty shares of Rs, 10 410816 6,108.16
each fully pad up
: 6,108.16
o @H% 6,108.16
AN R &
7 e
e e
S WS
= o o
(= e
FAL




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

& Reconciliation of the thares oatstanding ot the beginning and ot the end of the reporting period

Eguify shores

Ag at 3fst March 2022 As at 335t March 2021
Particulars . No, of shares Amount in R3, Neo. of shares Ameunt in Rs.
At the beginnig of the period 61,081,570 6,108 36010000 3601
issued dunng the period 25,071,570 1507
Ourstanding st the end of the period 61,081,570 6,108 1,081 570 5,108

b. Terms / Rights attached o equiry shares :

The Company has only one clase of equity shares having par vahie of Rs. 10"~ per share_ In the event of biquidstion of Company, the distribution will be i proporion to the number of squity |

shares held by shares holder (30 :43.98:1 02}

Thie parties shall at all times. post the closmg |, pamcipate in the Equity Share Capital in the following proportion:

Paities Shareholding Percentage
o (")

Forte and or its Affihates 50

[FPL and'or its Affiliates 36

Tetal He

The Compositon of Board of Directors will be i the

mannar below e o =

Nominee of Parties Number of Directors

Forte Nonuness 2

IFPL Nommiees 3

CED (nommee of any Parre and appointed by the mistual i

consent of the Pariies)

Total 6

£ .')i?nmn held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates and shareholders bolding more than 599 shares in the Company

30t Mar 2022 315t Mar 2021
Nawe of the Shareholder No. of shares Amount in Rx. Na. of chares Amopunt in Rs.
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Fabrvla Mebli "Forte'(70%; 30,340,785 305408 30340733 305408
indian Fummture Products Lonted (IFPL) (1.02%) €393 230 2679832 26798
Zuan Global Limited (ZGL) {48 38%) 29917753 199178 21,860,953 2,186.10
61,081,570 6,108.16 61,081570 6,108.16

“s per records of the Company, mcluding iis register of shareholders members and other declarations received from shareholder: regarding beneficial interest, the sbove shareholding

represemts both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

12. Other Equity

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss N ) o .
As at the beginning of the vear (T,.33322 {7,303.4h
Net iloss) for the veas ‘penod 230857 (2,020:58)
Re-mszscement gaun dosass; on defined benefit plns 6.08 1379
Securities Premium
Lssued duong the cenod (Share Preawam @ Ra7 Pec Share) 175501
As at the end of the yvear (9,853.71) (7,553.22)
13. Borrowings (Non current)

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021

Unsecured loans from other party

Loy from Related Pu:_r - ECB iRefer Neote 28 33260 -
Loan from Related Pacr - ICD (Refer Note 281 36751
Secured Loan from Banks
WCT Lozu from Bank 156473
Egrupaient Loan from ICICT 1433
Total 2,699.19 -

#*Our of the above Rs 468.47 Lucs are classified under Short rerm bormrowsn ent matunties of long rerm debr




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwase stated)

13a. Borrowings (Current)

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021

From bank
Sccured

Current Maturities of long term debt

Working capital loan from Deutshee Bank,AG India 950.95

Equipment Loan from 1CICI 8.55

Loan repayable on demand

Cash Credit 716.69 271501
From other party

Unsecured loans

Loan from Related Party - ECB (Refer Note.28)* 51.09

Inter corporate deposits from relaed party (Refer Now. 28) GO0
Total 1,787.28 2,715.01
Note:

1)

Loan facilities availed by the Company

Carrying Amount  Carrying Amount 31

31 March 2022 March 2021
Cash Credit
Deutshee Bank, AG India 1,318.81 -
ICICI Bank - 2,7115.01
WCTL
Deutshee Bank AG India 1.913.56 -
Equipment Loan from ICICI 2291 -
3,255.28 2,715.01

- The repayment details for the borrowings and its securities are as follows:

Details of repayment/ security

Cash Credit
Deutshce Bank,AG India

WCTL
Deutshece Bank, AG India

Equipment loan
Loan 1 - ICICI

Loan 2 - ICICI

Repayable on Demand.

Secured against Stock and Book debts of the Company Further, the facility has
been guaranteed by M/s. Zuari Global Limited by issuning Corporate Guarantee
and by FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" §.A Ostrow Mazowiecka, Poland for
SBLC.

Repayable in 60 equated monthly instalments.
Refer above for security details.Interest rate (@ TBLR + 1% p.a with quarterly
repricing.

Repayable in 36 equated monthly instalments commencing from 07-10-
2021 Vehicle purchased was mortgaged as security Applicable Interest rate is
12.30%

Repayable in 36 equated monthly instalments commencing from 07-10-
2021 Vehicle purchased was mortgaged as security Applicable Interest rate 18
12.30%

2) Inter corporate deposit

The Company has received an Inter Corporate Deposit fromM/s Zuari Global Limited for Rs 627 50 lacs during the year 2021-22 repavable within 72 months from
the from the date of availment at an interest rate of 17.50% p.a There are no principal repayments falling due during the year Further.details of interest repavments

were not stipulated in the agreement.

The Company has received an Inter Corporate Deposit fromM/s.FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE" in Euro(625603) equivalent in Rs 627 50 lacs during the year 2021-22
repayable within 72 months from the date of availment at an interest rate of 2.3% + Euribor Rate. There are no principal repayments falling due during the

vear Further details of interest repayments were not stipulated in the agreement.




Forte Fumiture Products India Privaie Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the petiod ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

3 )Quarterly stock statements filad by the Company with banks are i agreement with the beoks of accounts.
4) The Company has used the borrowings from banks availed during the vear for the specific purpose for which # was taken.
5) There has been o default as on Balance Sheet date in repavment of principal and mterest.

14. Trade pavables

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Trade Payables :
- Related Partr -Febaic Alebl & IFPL (Refer Note 28 204278 49177
- Diuss 10 MSME{Refor Nose 31 ) 3840 26825
- Trade parables other thas above 135235 946.81
Total 3,483.53 2,706.83
Irade Payable- Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
MSME Others MSME Others
Undisputed Dues . 88.40 330513 268.25 2 438,58
- Not Due -
- Less than | Yew 8540 123571 26825 207.88
- 12 veags 43374 396.37
- 223 rears 44238 493 46
- Mote than 3 veazs 1,294 30 1,338.87
Disputed Dues - - - =
- Not Due =
- Less than | Year #
1-2 vears =
- 2-3 vean

- Moze than 3 vears -

Tracle parabiles are non-mterert bennng and are normally settled 1 sccordance wuth teims of the preciinte orders. For rnported matenals, the same ace sormally
szacuced againet 180 dav: Letter of cracht

Fou tesns aad conditons with telated sasty, vefer 0 Now 28

For exolanazon: on the Compaat's credis 1tk macagement procester. refer to Note 29

For dircloture of duse to MSME - Note No.3!

15, Other Financial Liabilities

P Non- Current Cagent MNon- Current Current
Wi 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021

Other financial habilines ar amortsed cost

Titetest acermed bt not due on bomowmes: . 541 - -
Emplovee selated pavables
- Related Parues (Refer Note 28 - 6.97 - 1162
- Oitlers - 19094 - 20282
Sacunty deponts Tom dealers and emplorees - 3525 - 3395
Total - 242.57 - 260.39

13a. Other Financial Liabilities

; MNon- Current Cugrent Non- Current Curzent
Particulars 3
31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Leaze Laabulines 158583 503.59 175331 494.23
Total 1,515.83 505,50 1,752.31 404.258
Movement in Lease Habiliey 31st Mar 2022 315t Mar 2021
Clpsenng Balance 2 246.56 152470
; 7116 -
ed oy sccount of adopt 16
Fruznes conts aceried dunng the peard 20345
Parsient of lease by 30173

Balance 202144




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended Maurch 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless atherwise stated)

b) Break-up of current and non-current lease Habilities :

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease

habilities as at March 31, 2021:

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 | 31st Mar2021
Cucrent leaze habilites 503.39 49423
Nou-cucrent lease habaities 1.315.85 1,752.31
Total 2,021.44 2,246.56
d) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities
as at March 31, 2022 on an undiscounted basis:
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Les: than one veas 305,59 494 25
One to five Teas 1,515.85 1,75231
Alore than five Tears i ”
Total 2,021.44 2,240.56
e) Others
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Interest on lease labibtes 20545 216.11
Expeuses relanng to shost-tesm leases 364.73 358.94
Total cash outflow: for leazes (301.73) (494.25)
16. Other Current Liabilisies
Purticalucs Current Current
3st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
TDS 1333 17.31
Oithess o dlnes garable [359 2090
Advance: fiom Customes: B0.63 -
Toral 1157 38.21
17. Provisions (Current and Non-Current}
D
Pusticil 31st Mar 2022 - 31st Mar 2021
Non Current Current Non € 1 Current
Provmuon for lovee henefits:
- Prormdion for lagve hanefits (T nfundad 3098 §53 993
- Promisions for gravutr (Refer Note 34 6523 2395 2335
Others provisions;
Proviion for Wacanty 5.0 - &17
Total 21621 3T.e9 236.23 40.45
The snervament For “Prorizion: for Wanmnrr' dursiy the pennd i1 23 Ffollows -
Partical Curzent Curzent
31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Oipenung Balance 6.17 6.54
Addigous dasing the penod G Bt 617
Amoy d enod :
o arric 1 dunng the penod w7y 6.54
Unwinding of discount and changet m the disconnr rate =
Cloning Balance 5.22 6.17




Forte Furniture Products India Privaie Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

18. Revenue From Operations 3ist Mar 2022 3ist Mar 2021
Revenue from operations
Sale of product:imclnding exce durw)
- Fuushed good: 455204 346246
- Traded goods 633.01 66821
Total sale of products 5,167.05 4,130.67
Sale of Services
- Commisuon - 73.39
- Sexvices 0.7 -
O1her operating revenue
Serap Sales 1492 1832
Total 5,182.75 4,224.38
1¢. Other income
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Interest income:
On bank deposits 315 048
Lowinding of Intecest o secunty deposits grven - 13.70
Exces: promson/ naclhumed kabulities / unclatmed balances wotten back /Nouce Par 13.11 926
zchange chffecence (Gain 436 -
Insurance clamm - 280
Total 62.61 26.24
20. Cost of raw materials and components including packing materials consumed
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
1. Raw materials and components including packing matenal consamed
Opening stock EB3385 103282
Puzchases 233473 1971.13
Less: Sade of Rawe Matesals and componsats ichding packing matedals consamed * #
Less; inventor at the end of the vear 121105 103383
Total (Refer Note below) 2,357.51 1,970.12
Note - 20.1
Parpiculars 31st Mar 2022 31st Mar 2021
Raw Materals and components including packing materials consumed
- Particle boagd: 122524 87783
- Decowtve papers 23949 27459
- Packing matecils 29177 28640
- Qhess 601.01 531.30
Total 2,357.51 1,970.12




Forte Fumiture Products India Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements fot the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

21. (Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Pactieudars

31st Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Inventories at the end of the period
Work-m-progress 26258 15277
Tzaded goods 20234 285.13
Fuushed goods 1,113358 1,580.15
1,668.50 2,016.05
Inventones at the begnimg of the period
Work-in-progress 15277 160.60
raded goods 28315 29117
Fuushed goods 158015 1,194.12
2.016.05 1,645.89
(Increase}/decrease in inventories 347.54 (370.18)
22. Emplovee benefits expense
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Salanes, wage: and bounus 142190 L157.70
Contnbution to provident and other fuads 3553 4419
Gratwir expense - (Refer Note 34 2803 3230
Emplorees’ welfare expenze: 3152 26.00
Total 1,537.98 1,260.19
23. Finance Costs
Particulars 3ist Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on borrowngs
- to banks 23441 199.14
- 1o others 7 312.02 33472
Exschange chfference regarded a: an adjnstment to borrowg cost - 164.10
Bank charpes 7121 69.72
Total 617.04 817.68
24, Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Depsecianon of ngem-, plant and equpmen: (note 3 36.30 3949
Depreciaton on Right to use Assets (aote 4 35832 34761
Amorhranon of mtanghle assets (note 3} 306 3.06
Total 411.68 390.16

Ko. 40,1 HMain Raqd,
Binbattur Industrial
Wy



Forte Furniture Products India Privare Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements {or the period ended Muschy 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise siated)

25. Other expense

Particulars 31st Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Power and fuel 18627 171.89
Consumption of stores and spares 5175 4952
Repaus and mamtenance:
Buddmngs 397 1124
Plant and machmerr - -
Orthers 3595 6594
Ontward freight and forwardme charges 61343 31057
Rent 36473 33804
Promision for doubtful debrs 4104 4584
Frzed Asset of Scrapping 039 -
Rates and tazes 3345 107.66
Insurance 40.67 2328
Traveling and converance 4197 3543
Legal and Profeszional fees 49535 53.02
Parment to andstors (Refer Note below) 9.00 9.00
Bank Charges 15.71 1472
Commuucation costs 2038 1670
Adrertizmg and sales promotion 5117 2934
Provisson for warranties 522 6.17
Watch and Ward expenses 2835 2893
Miscellaneons expense: 3223 3542
Total 1,688.93 1,573.82
Note 2531
Payment to statutory auditors for 31st Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Auncit fee 200 9.00
Total 9.00 5.00
26 Fair values
Set ot below, 13 3 companon by class of the cacrmug amonats and Bur valne of the Company’s ananesl mstraments:
Canying amount Fair value/ Carrying amount Fair value/
Financial assets Amorased cost Amortised cost
Mazch 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Othes finaneal assets 5.06 2308 16525 105.25
Trade and other secershies 1349 36 1,34936 P63 14 1063 14
Cash snd eash equevalents wud other hank balance: 3382 3982 860 8.60
1,494.44 1,494.44 1,175.99 1,178.99
Financial Babilities
Basommngs 443647 445647 371501 2715301
Trade parables 348333 3.483.33 270683 270683
Other financial kshdinee 226400 226400 250695 250695
10,234.00 12,234.00 7,928.79 7,928.79

puilding,
Hear_lcic%‘aankumﬂed,, -
No. 48,1 Hain Rci}ﬂ,
Ambaitur industrial
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Forte Fumiture Products India Pnvate Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

28, Related party disclosures
The hst of related parties as identified by the n g are as under:
A Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the perod,
I. Joint Ventmrer of the Company:
|: Inckan Furmtnze Prodnets Laneted, Todi
2) FABRYRI MEBLI "FORTE" 5 A Outrow Mazowsecks, Paland
3 Lyag: Global Limetsd, Incka

L1, Other Assaciate Companies
1) Loan Agro Chemucals Litad
21 Gobmd Sogez Ml Limuted

31 Znag Taforeodd

1. Key Managenal Personnal

i Andize: Szevgel - Cluef Esecitee Officer nnd Whole Tume Director
2] ANANDAKUMAR, - Chuef Farancal Officer (DO] 011,202
5 Busr Krienar Biswral - Cluef Funanesal Offess DOL 30 102074
3) AL Laxmzn - Comparr Secpetary (DOL 18022023

Rebied P Transacton a1 per Acconutug Stantacd 24

Followuag munactcus were caxned ont with sehited sarer a1 the orduin coorte of busmess for the vear ended 310t March 2022

Year ended 3ist March 2022 Year ended 315t Masch 2001
SL. - ’ it Othe. i
P Taansaction details V{::':n! Arscomies & [Key Managedal vi‘” Othet Kissscintes| Key Miragerial
Company Company Bessinial Company * e
I [Poschise of Fuushed Goods
= Indizan Funurage Products Luouted 3329 1512
2 |Pazehase of Ruwe Matenads and components
- FABRYRI MEBLI "FORTE" 5.4 Ostrow Mazowiecka, Polind +97 3472
3 |Sale of Fauhed Goods
- Indizn Fugumee Prodocts Linured 1961 007
- Luan Inforwodd - -
- Gobmd Suga: ALls Lasted -
4 [Sale of Services
- Tndtinn Foommes Prochcts Lumuted - 656l
5 E;r.?t::cv-. Reenburrement asace
- Indian Fanutore Products Lamated 47042 48807
- PABRYRKI MEEBLI "FORTE" 5. A Ostrow Mazowiacks, Paland 30.06 4090
6 |interest expenmse
- Indian Pamumee Prodocs Lowed - 8838
- Loan Global Leruted T8 543
= Advaur France G40 =
FABAYRKI MEEI] "FORTE" 5.2 Ostrow dazowecks, Polind 3735 €9.56
T |Intecest expenss Repaid
- Tnchan Fruutine Produc Lmuted - 43508
- Lnan Giobal Lamuted 987 780
- Advens Fmance 040
- FABRYRI MEBLI "FORTE" 5 A.Ostrow- Mazewecks, Poland 5.60 13235
g |ECE- ICD Recerred
= Tapehan Fronunwe Prodncss Lonuted - ’
- £naw Glolak Lunuted 62730 71000
- FABRYRI MEBLI "FORTE" 5. A0stwow Aaguieechs, Palad GLE 45
2 |ECE’ JCD Repud back
- Iz Frimsmee Prochiers Dinited - 1.030,00
- £ran Gloiral Lunuted - T10.0G
- FABRYKI MEBLI "FORTE™ $ A Ostrone Mazer-wecks. Pobad - 2008, 34
(0 |Shase Capital Recerred
- Luac Global Lemated - 1780
- Indiag Fuoumge Product Liouted . 141335
- FABRYKI MEEBLI "FORTE" 5 A Qe Mazowmecha, Palaad - 213008
i1 Manngenal Reavwmesanon
- Andze: Szovpel 1069 10185
- ANANDARKIMAR 1235
- Buar Krmaz Baweal 4T 3042
- AL Lazsvian -1 T3e

Near ICIC Bank Limited,

No. 40, 1l Main Rua_m.
Ambatiut Industria! /2




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Balance Crarptniiding a3 on 3 1ss Maceh 2622

Year ended 33st March 2022 Year enced 31st March 2023

SL. Join Othex !
Ne. L S \ s Key Managerial Venture ‘Other Asscociates Kt_\"‘Ma:lng!;n'd

Transacnion details
Compauy Company | Compuy g

| [A:+ECE. ICD Prable:
- &uzg Global Lunuted =730 =
= FABRYRI MEBLI "FORTE" 5.4 Qstrow Mazawiecks Polaud 603.69 -

2 |As Teade Parables
- FABRYRI MEBLI "FORTE" § A Ostcon- Mazowrecke, Polind 29973 93487
- Indan Fucutare Peodnets Lanwred if4i00 35690

3 |At Teade Rececranles

- Lnckan Furnitnre Prodach Lonited

- e Globs! Leured

- durey Agre Chenuesh Liored |

- dnng Inferoadd = 32
Gobwd Suger Ml Liouted

Ay listesesr Pavahile o ECE - ICD
559
FABRYKI MEBLI “FORTE" S.4.Qsnon Mazowecks, Paland 102

Managensl Hearersnon parable
- Andeze Szergel 3 63
- ANANDAKTUMAR 242 2
= Bgar Koumar Buwal * - 341
- AL Laxoun §78

Note
Zuan Global Limited has given corporate guamatee cash credit and WCTL facilities availed by the Company.
2 Febryla Mebb Forte' has given SBELC Bank guarantee for Cash credit and WCTL facilities availed by the company.

29. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal tinancial labilibes, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits, emplovee liabilities. The main purpose of these
tinancial Liabilities 1= to finance the Company’s operetions and fo provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade
and other recervables, and cash and chort-term deposits that derive cirectly from its operabions,

The Company 1= eaposed to credit risk and liudity risk The Company s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is
supported by a Finance team that advises on fnancial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The finance team provides assurance
to the Company's senior management that the Company’s tinancial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identitied,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. Itis the Company's policy that no trading in dervatives for speculative purposes may
be undertaken. The Board of Directers reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are smnmarised below.

Market risk

Market rick is the rick that the fair value of bubure cash flows of a tinancial instrument will Huctuate bacause of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other prive 115k, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings and deposah!

The sensitivity analy<is in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2022

The sensitivity analysis have beenprepdred on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratic of fixed to l]mltms interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the pmpoﬂ:iorn
of tinancial mstruments in foreign currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place at 31 March 2622

Interesi rate nsk

Applicability - Financial liabiities

Long-lerm debt obligations with fixed interest rales.
Loan trom Group Company

Shorl term loans with fixed interest rates
Cash Credit from bank
Inter corporate deposits

Interest rate visk is the risk that the tair value or heture cash flows ot a inancial mstrument wili Buctuate because of chapges in market interest cates. The Company’s exposure
ter the risk of changes in markel interest rates relates primanty to the Company’'s long-term debt obligations with Hoating interest rates.

Near ICICI Bank Limited,

No. 40, Il Main Road,
Ambattur Industrial
... Estate,
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The Company has used movement in bank rates by Reserve Bank of India for making a sensitivity analvsis for interest rate risk.
31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21
Increase/decrease in  Effecton  Effect on profit

basis points profit before tax ( Rs.)
hefore tax {
Rs.)
INR Borrowings +50 {16.26) (11.70}
EURO Borrowings +50 (165) -
INR Berrowings -50 16.26 11.70
EURO Borrowings 50 165

Fareign currency risk
Applicability -

Foreign currvency sish is the visk that the fair valve or future cash fows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in loreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to
the nsk of changes m foreign exchange rafes relates primarily to the Compny’s operating activities

The Company management constantly keeps a track of the toreign currency movement and takes advize from the Group treasury for hedging the foreign exchange rates. As
the volume of tansactions and outstanding position at a given point of time is very low and the risk due to foreign exchange tluctuation would not be material, the
maagement decided not to hedge the foveign currency exposure.

Foreign curvency sensitivity
The l‘n[!nwing taliles demonstrate the sensitivi by to 4 reasonably possilile rll.u\ge in USD and ELIRO m‘lmnge rutes, with all other variables held constant, the impact on the
Company’s protit betore tay is due to changes in the tair value of monetary Labilities including non-designated Loreign curreney derivatives and embedded derivatives,

310322 -0
Effect on profit before Lax Effecl on profit before tax
Borrowings Trade Payables® Bormrowmgs Trade Payables
Change in EURO rate
+5% [30:15) 149003 - {46740
5% 3018 4999 16.74

Change in USD rate

5%

i

o
“
o

i

“Includes advance received from vendors

Credit risk

Credit visk 15 the risk that counterparty will net meet its obligations under a lnancial instrument o1 customer conhiact. leading to 4 binancial loss, The Company is exposed to
credit sk rom its operabing activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its inancing activities, including depesits with banks and hnancial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other nancial instraments.

Applicability
Trade receivables
Inter Corporate Deposits
Deposits with Banks

Security deposits given

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by monitoring individual category customers subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Outstanding customer receivabies are tegnlarly monitored. Based on the aging of reveivables, the Company assesses the recoverabilty of the amount from
each customer

An impaimment analvsis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. lu addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped wito
hemogenous groups and assessad for impairment collectivelr. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data The Company does not hold collateral as security.
The Company evaluates the concentration of sk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located i several jurisdictions and industries and operate in
largeiy independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposiis

Credit risk from balances with banks and hnancial institutions is managed by the Company's finance departmest in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of
surplis funds are made in fived deposits with banks ealy. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company 5 Beaxd of Directors onan annual basis, The limifts are set
to muninuse the concentration of risks and thatelore mutigate tinancial loss through counterparty’s potential tailure to make pavments.
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Liquidity risk

The Company menitoss its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.

The Company mwritors its risk of a shortage of funds using future cash flow projections. The Company manages its liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash flows
trom customers and by mamntaning adequate cash and cadh equivalents. The Company’s objactive is to mamiain a balance between conbinuity of funding and flexibility
throngh shareholder funds or borrowings from the joint venbhure partoers.

The table below summarises the maturity protile of the Company's tinancial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments,

On demand Less than 3 3to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
maonths

Year endad
31-Mar-22
Borrowmgs Tiang 107059 a0 109 = 445647
Trade payablos 348253 - - 348353
Other tinancial ablities 24357 1%42 3739 L273.06 - 202144

444279 126.42 1,449.98 397224 = 9,991.43

Excessive risk concentration

Loncentrations anse when a number of counterparties ase engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that
wionld cause their ability to meet contractual ohligations to be similasly affectsd by changes in economic, paliical ar ather conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company's performance tor developments atfecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid exvessive concentrations of sk, the Company’s policies and procedurss include sprecilic gaidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversitied porttolio.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

30. Capital management

For the purpose of the Compant’s capital management, capial inchndes nsued equity capital and all other squity teserves aticbutzble to the equity holders of the
Compant. The pumary objecars of the Compant’s capital management is to masnuse the shareholdes value

The Compants cbjectves fox managng capstal compree safeguarding the boumess a: 2 gomg concern, creating vaine for stakeholdess and supporting the
development of the Company. In pamenlas the Company seeks to mantun an adequate capitalzavon that enables it to achevs a satsfactory semom for
ihareholders aud enzure nceezs to exteenal sonrces of Snsncing, i part by maintanme a adequate rating, In this context, the Compasy manages ity capinal stroctuce
and admsn thet stooctuge whes changes m economuc condinons so requure.

In oyder 1o aclueve tus overnll obnective, the Compant’s capital management, amongst other thngy, mms to ensure that & meets Snzacial covenants attached to the
artegest-eanng loaus and borrovangs that define capital semuctue requuremnents. Breacher m meeting the financal covenant: would permit the bank to munediately
call ioan: and bosommes. Theze have been no hreacher m the fmancil covenants of aw aiterest-berang loan: and bomrowmg i the cusrent penod

No changes wese mzde m the obiectme:, policie: or procetses for managing capital dusing the period ended 31 March 2022
The manageatent constantr mowtos and seviews the debt to equaty satio. As part of this review, the management connders the cost of capeal and nske assocated
with each class of capmal requrements and tenance of adeguate hopucey boffer

Tke poonon ou repostug date & sammiazzed s the follovang table:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Debt

BorrowmngsiNon cuscent: - Note 13 269919 -

Crerenr snamapses of loag-!e;m bquowings -

BooownngsiCacrent- Note [3ia 178728 271581
Lesa: Cazl: mnd Cash egrivalents - Note 10a (2441} (831}
Net debt 4,462.06 2,706.70
Equuty 6,:108.18 6,108.16
Oithier seputy 9.83571; (7,35322)
Total Capital 3,747.53) (1,445.06)
Capital and Net debr T14.51 1,261.64
Gearing ratio 624% 215%

31. Details of dues to micro and sivall enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2000

Dues to Micro Small & Medinm Eatespuses have beeu determuned to the exteat such parties have been identified ou the basis of infonmason collected by the
company. This has been relied upon be the anditors. Aceording to the records avalshle with the Company certain amonat have been sdentified a2 dues to mpples:
reg:szerd undes Miero. Small and Medmm Enterprses Development Act, 2000 ED Act’) The disclosuee pursuant to the sasd MSMED Act ace as follows:
ZROCTS /1
= ipunch Pride
Building,

Ho. 40, !l Main Ru;d,
Ambattur Industrial
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Particulars

= : ) March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at
year end 88.40 268.25
Interest duc to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

: 4.66 132
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year = e
[nterest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year . )
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to supplicrs registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year _ ‘
Interest due and payable towards suppliees registered under MSMED Act, for payments already
made 405 -
Further interest rematning due and payable for carier vears 1.32 1.29

32. Contingent Liabilities & Claims against the company not ackowleged as debt

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company not acknowelged as debt

Total

33. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumprions that affeet the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and habilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilinies, Uncerramnty abour
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected n

future periods.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,including legal, contractor, land access and
other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail 1o occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the

outcome of future events.
Estimates and assumptions
The kev

ssumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the cacrying amounts of assets and Liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Hxisting circumstances and assumprons about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyvond the control of the company. Such changes are

reflecred in the assumptions when they occur.
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33.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrving value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its tair value less costs ot disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
trom the budget tor the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not vet committed to or
significant tuture investments that will enliance the asset's performance ot the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is

sensitive to the discount rate used tor the DCF maodel as well as the expected tuture cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

13.2 Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against whiclh the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planming strategies.

The Company has significant amount of tax losses carried forward. These losses, expire in 8 years and mav not be used to offset

taxable income elsewhere in the Company. On this basis, the Company has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax
assets on the tax losses carried forward.

33,3 Defined benefil plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined bensfit gratuity plan and other delined benetit plans and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the tuture. These include thie determination ot the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benelit obligation is highly sensitive te
changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed at eacl: reporting date

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate tor plans operated in
[ndia, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit cbligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are
excluded trom the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that thev do not represent high quality
cotporate bonds,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected Future
intlation rates tor the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations aie given in Note 34.

33.4 Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances tor estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the aging of the receivable balances and historical
experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not be collectible.

33.5 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic {COVID-19)

The Management, based on the internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these tinancial results,
has concluded that no adjustments are required in the carrving amounts of property, plant and equipment, Right of use assets,
inventories, trade receivables and other financial assets. However, given the uncertainties associated with the nature and
duration of the pandemic, actual results may differ from those estimated as at the date of approval of the tinancial statements.
The company will continue to monitor fature economic conditions and update its assessment.

gutding,
(it Bank Limited,

Wiain Rozd,
No. 48,8 \‘ﬁd e
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34. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

t!:;zrl.icula.rs | o o ) 3N-Mar-22  31-Mar-21
ans

- Gratuity (Liability)

189,18 199,72

The Company has a defined gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five year of service gets o gratuity on departure @ 15
davs of last drawn salary for cach completed year of service, The scheme is non funded.

The tollowing tables summarise the components of net benefil expense rcognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for
the respective plans:

Net employee benefil expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the period ended 31st March 2022

~ Particulars 31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21
Current Service Cost 1625 1772
["ast service cost
Loss /{iain) on settlement - -
Net interest cost 1277 14.58
Total o - 20.03 32.30

Changes in the present value of the.defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

- Cralui;}f
Particulars ~31-Mar- -Mar-

Opening defined obligation 199.72 2270
Current service cost 16.25 17.72
l"ast service cost - -
[nterest cost 1277 14.58
Bonefits pa id (33.49) (39.48)
Remeasureament on the net dalined benefit lHability:

Actuarial (gain)/ loss vn obligations S {6.08) (15.79)
Defined benefilt obligation S 189.18 199.72

Particulars N A-Mar22  31-Mar21
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 12-14) 100.00% 100.00%
Discount rate {In %) 6.80% 6.41%
Salarv Fscalation (in %) 5.00% 3.00%
Withdrawal Rate p.a. (in %) 10.00% 10.00%

A quantilative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are shown as below:

Cratuity Plan

Assumplions Discount rate Future salary increases
' S % T s IE3
Sensitivity Level increase  decroase i decrease
impact on defined benefit abligation 31-Mar 22 (5.5 (.10 .20 (2.70)
1% 1% e 1%
Sensilivity Level invrease  decrease 1% incretss decrease
lmpact on defined henefit abligation 31-Mar 21 (5940 ] Hb0 (R.00)

The sensitivity due 1o mortality and withdrawals are noi material & hence change impact is rot caleulated,

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase in pension in payment, rate of increase in pension before ratirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a a
lump sum payment on retirement

The sensitivily analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
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The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefil plan in future years:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting neriod)
Betwesn 2 and 5 vears

Between 6 and 10 vears

Bevond 10 years

Total expected payments

2,394,786
9,782,104
8,667,264
9,143,498

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 6 vears.

Long Term Compensated Absences
The assumpliens used (or computing the long term accumulated compensated absences on actuarial basis are as follows -

Assumptions - o S 2021-22 2020-21
soount rate S (.80 % B.40%
Salary growthrate S . R 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 10,005 | 10.00%
34.1 Ratios
Analvtical Ratios 31st Mar 22 3lst Mar 21 Variance i
Current ratio Current assets
Current Liabilities 077 0.71 9%
Debt-equity ratio” Total debt
Shareholders aquity 120 1.88 5%
Debt service coverage Net Tatng income
ratio*® Debt service L50 0.09 -116%
Return on equity ratic Net income
Average Shareholders equty 059 0.7e -13%
Inventory turnover Sales
ratio Average inventory
171 143 -i8%
Trade receivables Net Credit Sales
turnover ratio Avg Trade Receivables 390 3.78 3%
Trade pavables unove Net Credit Purchases
Average Teade Pavables o8 2.77 &%
Net Capital arnover Netrmales
ratio™ Average Working Capital 324 211 -34%
Net profit ratio Met profit
Net sales 04+ 048 7%
Return on Capital Net operating profit
employed*** Capital employed -230% -85% -142%
Raturn on Net profit
invesonen™ Metworth 0l44% 139% 56%

Reasons for variances:
“ Due to increase in borrowings in currant vear compared to previcus rear
** Dus to settemient of ICT in previons year

“+=Dme to increase in sales coupled with increase in working capital lcans.
==*Due to jrease in accumulated losses.




Forte Fumiture Products India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

=

35: | The sconmulited losses of the Conwpany a3 at March 31, 2022 amounting to Rs.(98535.71) kkb: has resubied m ecotion of enfice net worth of the companr 25 on

that date. Fusther, the company has menceed cashh losses m the current vear and ako m the previons vear However. the company i2 only i s Gfth vear of full
commercial operatons. Based on the projection: of esimated fumre cath HSows, dulr admeted for the probable impact on acconnt of the Comid-19 pandenuc, the
companT eRpect sguficant snpravement m the operatmg rewlts in the coming vears. Fncther, the shareliclder: have abo commutted 10 support the company in the
loug cerm. a5 evadenced by pesiodic infision of equity thaze capital incindme Re.4262.1 7hact in the previons vear and 2ddigonal funding m the form of ECB/ ICD
for an amount of R 1253 facs w e cnucent vear.

Consdenng the above. the management is of the mew that the company’s operahons will mea profitable in the near future and that the comprry will be able to meet
the habikues as on 31-03-2022. Accordingly, the sccounts have been deawn up on 2 going concem basic.

Fusther, takng mio aceount the fubure cash flow projections as stated above, the management ix of the opiman that there is no impairment in the cacrpng valve of
proper, plant and equmpment and Ro¥” asset as on 3 15t Mazch, 2022,

2 No fouds have been advanced os loaned or imvested {exher from borrowed fuads o share praminm or anr other souress or kind of fonds; by the Company to
or m aar othes personin or eabtv(wes), mcachng foregn entites (“latermedunes™) with the uoderstancing, whether recorded m wiiting or otherwise, that the
Intermechacy chall lead or fovest in pasey identfied br or on behalf of the Company (Ulimate Beneficianes) The Conapany Tzs not seceived any fund from any
pastrz) Pradmg Pasr) with the understanding that the Company thall whether divectr or ndisectly lead or wiwest s other persont or entties identfied br or on
belialf of the Company “Tllimate Benefzciamer”) o provide any guarantee, secunty or the hke on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficianes.

36. Income Taxes
No provmon for custent taxes bas been made i veew of the lozres micnsred m the carrent penod. A: 2 matter of prudesce, deferred tax asets (net) on accouat of
loszes has not been taken credlit for m the accounts. The detals of deductible temporarr differences and noused tax lozses on wiich defecved tax asset has not been

reocgiuzed are a: follows

Pt 3N-Mar-22 3i-Mar-21 .
(Rs.) Expiry Date (Bs.) Expiry Dare
Dredinetihie Teszspo:?_r'." Differences - Provision for Emplores benefits 23868 NA 05 NA
affowable on pavment baus
Unnsed Tax Loszer - Bustness Loss - AY 20(7-18 72642 AN 2025-26 T26 AN 23536
- Busuers Loss - AY 2013-19 206131 AY2026-27 206131 AY2026-2°
- Busmess Loss - AY 2019-20 135402 AY2027.28 133402 AY 202728
- Bursmess Los: - AY 2020-21 236363 AY202820 256363 AY.202829
- Business Less - AY 202(-22 189922 AY 20203
Unused Tiz Lowe: - TUnabrorhed Depreciaton - AY 2017-18 - NA - NA
- Unabsosbed Depreciabon - AY 2018-19% TA3 MA 715 NA
- Unabsorbed Deprecaton - AY 2019-20 3290 NA 3330 NA
- Unabsorbec Depreciation - AY 2020-21 3117 NA 3117 NA
- Unabsorbed Deprecaton - AY 2021-22 3514 NA

37. Earmng per share
Baue and Dduted EPS amonnt: ase calendated by dimiding the profit for the pened atclntzble to equity helder: of the Companr by the waghted avezage number of
Eomty shares outstanding dusmg the penod.

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Profie after ax (2,308.57) (202058
Wesghred average number of shares nsed 1 computng easmgs per thase 61,081,570 44,321,397
Earmungs per thare - Baue aued dinted (in Re)) [3.78) {+.56)

38. Segment Information
Information regarding Pnmary Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108
Tae Board of disectors monitors the opesaung revilt: of its busness a2 a single poimwarr segment © Mannfrctice, puschase and sale of Fumimse” for the prapose of

making operatonal deciuons. The busmess of the Company falls vader 2 smgle pomary segment for the purpose of Ind AS 148,




Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Naotes o the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2002
(All amcunts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless orherwise stated)

W, the previos year's fizures have been reseouped, secle aiod wherseer nezessasy so as to make them comparabli with the current vear's figures

s per our repart of eeer da
For Varma & Varna For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Charered Accountanits Forte Fumiture Products India Private Limited
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Plwe : Chennai Place . Gurgaon Place : Chennm
Dare "9 05 2022 Date - 18052022 Dhace « TH52122
ANANDAKUMAR Gdatay Dutra
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